



**CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  
November 2, 2016**

**To:** Mayor and City Council

**From:** Don Salts, Deputy Public Works Director

**Subject:** Introduction of Ordinance Amending Title 15, Buildings and Construction of the MMC and Adopting by Reference the 2016 California Building Code, California Residential Code, California Electrical Code, California Mechanical Code, and the California Green Building Standards Code, Set Public Hearing and Adopt CEQA Exemption

**Date:** October 24, 2016

---

**Recommendation**

Conduct a first reading and introduce an ordinance amending Title 15, Buildings and Construction, of the Martinez Municipal Code (MMC); by adopting by reference Title 24, Parts 2, 2.5, 3, 4, 5, and 11 of the California Code of Regulations, known collectively as the California Building Standards Code and respectively as the California Building Code, California Residential Code, California Electrical Code, California Mechanical Code, California Plumbing Code, and the California Green Building Standards Code and setting a public hearing for November 16, 2016 to adopt same - CEQA exemption pursuant to Title 14, Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3).

**Background**

The State Building Standards Commission reviews new model code standards approximately every three years. After the modified standards are approved by the Building Standards Commission, cities are mandated to adopt them within six months or they become law by default. The proposed changes to Title 15 will bring the City into compliance with the State mandate.

Staff has reached out to the various trade organizations including Electrical, Mechanical, Plumbing and Carpenters Unions in an effort to advise them of the updated code adoption. Additionally, staff is providing hand outs at the front counter of city hall which give notice of the updated codes to be adopted. The proposed adoption is also on the City of Martinez web site. Some of the important changes in this round of updates include additional clarifications on Carbon Monoxide Detectors requirements, Smoke Detector placements and Roof Eave protection requirements relative to the property lines.

**Fiscal Impact**

Building Division has purchased one set of new code books. Additionally, we have been providing in-house staff training on the new code requirements and expect to attend some International Code Council Trainings on the subject matter. \$2,000 has been included in the current budget for resource material and outside training on these new laws.

The City Council finds that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Title 14, Chapter 3, California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of this ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment. The ordinance adopts standard codes in effect pursuant to state law and sets requirements for compliance. The adoption of this ordinance does not entitle new development or any changes to the physical environment.

**Attachments**

1. 2016 Building Code Adoption Ordinance
2. Exhibit A – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.04 (Building Code)
3. Exhibit B – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.05 (Residential)
4. Exhibit C – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.07 (Green Building)
5. Exhibit D – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.16 (Mechanical)
6. Exhibit E – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.20 (Plumbing)
7. Exhibit F – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.24 (Electrical)
8. Exhibit G – 2016 Building Code Chapter 15.28 (Fire Prevention)

**APPROVED BY:**



Brad Kilger, City Manager

Exhibit A

**CHAPTER 15.04 - BUILDING CODE**

**15.04.010 - Adoption of the California Building Code.**

The City hereby adopts by reference the 2016 Edition of the California Building Standards Code, Volumes 1 and 2, also known as Part 2 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, which incorporates a California version of the 2015 International Building Code published by the International Code Council with the amendments ~~as set forth in this Chapter~~ and excluding all appendices with the exception of the following: Appendix J as amended herein, ~~for the purpose of governing the erection, construction, enlargement, alteration, repair, moving, removal, demolition, conversion, occupancy, equipment, use height area, and maintenance of all buildings and structures in the city, specifically comprised of the following:~~

~~a. Part 1 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Administrative Code published by the International Code Council.~~

~~b. Part 2 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Building Code, Volumes 1 and 2 which incorporates a California version of the 2015 Edition of the International Building Code, as published by the International Code Council.~~

**15.04.020 - Amendments to California Building Code.**

~~Amendments as set forth in Sections 15.04.026 through 15.04.200 herein are hereby adopted.~~

**15.04.0260 - Section 115 Amended—Stop Work Orders.**

Section 115 of the California Building Code is hereby removed and replaced to read amended as follows:

**Stop Work Orders.** Whenever any work is being done contrary to, respectively, the provisions of this Code or any provision of the Martinez Municipal Code, or any condition imposed by the City on a permit or approval issued or granted under the Martinez Municipal Code, the Building Official may order the work stopped by notice in writing served on any persons engaged in the doing or causing such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop such work until authorized by the Building Official to proceed with the work. Such orders may also be served by the Chief of Police. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a stop work order except such work as that person has been directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by Title 1 of the Martinez Municipal Code or as otherwise provided by law<sup>[JAI]</sup>.

**15.04.030 - Section 114 Amended—Violations and Penalties.**

Section 114.4 of the California Building Code is hereby removed and replaced to read as follows:

## Exhibit A

~~**114.4. Violation Penalties.** Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, constructs, alters, or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be subject to amended to provide that Violations and Penalties shall be as set forth in Title 1 of the Martinez Municipal Code or as otherwise prescribed by law. Any violation of this section shall be punishable as set forth by Section 15.04.200 of Chapter 15.04 of the Martinez Municipal Code.~~

### **15.04.035 - Section 105.2 Amended—Exempted Work.**

Section 105.2 of the California Building Code is hereby amended ~~to remove and replace Building category exceptions 1 through 13 with the following~~as follows:

**105.2 Exempted Work.** A building permit will not be required for the following:

- A. One-story detached accessory buildings used as tool and storage sheds, playhouses, and similar uses, provided the projected roof area does not exceed 100 square feet and 6 feet, 6 inches, in height.
- B. Fences not over 6 feet in height when in compliance with other applicable codes.
- C. Cases, counters and partitions not over 5 feet 9 inches high.
- D. Retaining walls not over 3 feet in height measured from grade to top of cut or fill unless supporting a surcharge or impounding Class I, II or III liquids.
- E. Platforms, walks and driveways not more than 18 inches above grade and not over any basement or story below.
- F. Painting, papering and similar finish work.
- G. Temporary motion picture, television, and theatre stage sets and scenery.
- H. Window awnings supported by an exterior wall of Group R, Division 3, and Group M occupancies when projecting not more than 1/3 the distance to a property line, providing the projection does not exceed 54 inches.

### **15.04.040 - Section 105.3 Amended—Application.**

Section 105.3 of the California Building code is here ~~by~~ amended to add the following ~~after (7)~~:

"8. The plans shall include two copies of the site plan with the location of all existing trees as defined in Section 8.12.020 of the Martinez Municipal Code, in addition to the location of proposed structures, existing structures, proposed improvements, easements and such other information that may be required by the Building Official. The plot plan shall show the location of existing curbs, sidewalks, public sewers, public conduits, waterways and culverts on or affecting the property, and any rights-of-way, existing easements or proposed easements required in connection therewith."

"—The site plan shall be reviewed by the City Engineer for required public improvements and when the plans include such improvements they shall comply with

## Exhibit A

City standards. Four copies of the site plan, with contours, are required where improvements and/or grading is necessary."

"Public improvements as used in this section shall include but not be limited to the following:

"A. Improvements required for general access by the public (e.g., parking lots, common driveways, private streets, etc.)

"B. Improvements required for access by police, fire, ambulance and/or other emergency vehicles.

"C. Improvements required for the public health, safety and welfare of those occupying or using the proposed construction (e.g. storm drains, drainage ditches, guardrails, fences, etc.)"

### **15.04.045 - Permit Fees—Amend Section 109.**

Section 109.2 of the California Building Code is hereby ~~amended~~ removed and replaced to read as follows:

Permit fees for work regulated by this Chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by resolution of the City Council of the City of Martinez.

### **15.04.150 - Appendix Chapter J Amended—Excavation and Grading.**

Appendix Chapter J-Excavation and Grading, shall be amended in the manner described below as follows:

"A. Section J103.2 further amend by adding a new paragraph 8 as follows:

"8. Grading of streets in subdivisions for which improvement plans have been approved by the City Engineer when such grading is being inspected by the City Engineering Department.

"B. Section J102-Amend by adding the following definition in proper sequence:

"Building Official. For the purpose of this chapter this title shall be the Public Works Director or his or her designee.

"C. Section J104.2—Amend by deleting entire section and substituting the following in place thereof:

"Each application for a grading permit shall be accompanied by four sets of plans 24 inches x 36 inches in size prepared at a scale of 1 in.=40 feet or greater. The plans shall be accompanied by specifications and supporting data consisting of a soils report and engineering geology report. The plans and specifications shall be prepared and signed by a civil engineer when required by the Building Official. Upon approval, three sets of the approved corrected plans shall be submitted to the City for use during the course of the work.

"At the completion of work and prior to release of the permit by the City, one reproducible set and one set of prints shall be submitted to the Building Official. The plans shall be designated 'As Built' and shall include any changes from the approved plan made during the course of work. The 'As Built' plans shall be signed and dated by the Civil Engineer and Soils Engineer.

"D. Section J102.1—Amend by deleting the entire section and substitute the following in place thereof:

## Exhibit A

- "a) Plan review and permit fees for work regulated by this chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by resolution of the City Council of the City of Martinez.
- "b) Separate plan review and permit fees shall apply to retaining walls or major drainage structures as required elsewhere in this code.
- "E. Section J105.2.1—Amend by adding a new Subsection J105.2.1 to the end of the section as follows:
  - Pad Certification.
  - "Prior to the issuance of a building permit, as specified in this code, the Civil Engineer shall certify, in writing, that pad elevations are in conformance with the approved grading plans and the rough lot will drain according to drainage patterns specified on the plan.
  - "The area of the pad within the foundation of the proposed structure shall be certified by the Civil Engineer to be within 0.1 feet ( $\pm$ ) of the pad elevation specified on the approved grading plan.
  - "The engineer's certification shall state that in his opinion finish lot grading may be done to provide positive drainage away from the foundation and to approved drainage facilities (curb underdrains, lined ditches, etc.) as specified on the approved grading plan."

### 15.04.155 - Site Development Permit.

A site development permit shall be required for each single parcel residential and non-residential development for the plan checking and inspection of all non-building site improvements including grading, drainage, streets, driveways, parking lots, walkways, and other related improvements. The site development permit shall serve as a grading permit and permit for all other non-building on-site improvements. An encroachment permit for improvements within the public rights-of-way is still required.

### 15.04.165 - Section J110 Amended—Erosion Control.

Section J110 of the [Appendix Chapter J Excavation and Grading California Building Code](#) is hereby amended to delete~~ing~~ the entire section and substitute~~ing~~ the following in place thereof:

**A. Title and Purpose.** This ordinance shall be known as the "Erosion Control Ordinance." The purpose of this chapter is to provide minimum standards and procedures to protect the public interest by managing construction practice of land excavation, fill, storage and grading.

**B. Erosion Control Measures—Required.** Erosion control measures are required prior to commencing work under any of the following conditions:

1. The area of land disturbed exceeds one-half acre;
2. Natural and finished slopes exceed 10% and area of land disturbed exceeds 3,000 square feet.
3. Volume of soil stored exceeds 200 cubic yards.

## Exhibit A

**C. Work Not Requiring Erosion Control Measures.** Erosion control measures will not be required for:

1. Routine maintenance work;
2. Work specifically determined by the City Engineer which meets the intent of this erosion control ordinance.

**D. Permit—Application.** Erosion mitigation measures shall be a requirement of the grading permit. The plans submitted with the application for a grading permit shall include erosion mitigation measures and may include or be accompanied by all or part of the following items as required by the City Engineer:

1. Site plan;
2. Grading plan;
3. Erosion control plan;
4. Soil engineer's report on erosion potential due to wind or water runoff and mitigation measures;
5. Contractor's name and emergency phone number;
6. Checking and inspection fees;
7. Security bonds or deposits;
8. Work schedule.

If Erosion Control Plans prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer have not been submitted to the City for review by September 1, the City may have plans prepared and the cost shall be deducted from the deposit. The deposit, or any unexpended portions, shall remain with the City until release of the bond for the Grading Permit or acceptance of the improvements by the City, whichever occurs later.

**E. Security for Erosion Control Measures.**

At the time of issuance of an Encroachment Permit, Grading Permit, Site Development Permit, or other approval to commence work by the City, an additional cash deposit shall also be required to guarantee installation of erosion control measures, cleanup of siltation, dust, and debris from the project site onto public and private property, repair of public improvements damaged by activity, installation of emergency measures to protect public health and safety, and continuing maintenance of erosion control facilities during the period from October 15 through April 15. The required deposit may be used at the discretion of the City. The required amount of the deposit shall be set forth in the development agreement or permit. The applicant shall maintain the deposit at the required amount at all times as specified in the Agreement or Permit.

At acceptance of improvements or final approval of the work covered by the permit, whichever comes later, all unexpended funds of the applicant's cleanup deposit shall be refunded.

## Exhibit A

In the event it is necessary for the City to use any portion of the cleanup deposit, the applicant will be billed by the City for the costs of the required corrective work and administrative costs incurred for City staff time. The applicant shall deposit the required amount to bring the deposit to its specified level within ten days of notification by the City. Failure to comply with these provisions shall be cause for issuance of a Stop Work Order on the project or not granting final approvals and additional permits.

This deposit shall be required for all grading permits, site development permits, subdivision improvement agreements or for other work as required by the City.

### F. Standards.

The minimum Erosion Control Standards shall be as approved by the City Engineer and shall include the following:

1. Wind Related Erosion.
  - a. Temporary erosion control measures shall be part of the grading plan.
  - b. Temporary erosion control measures shall be maintained pending the installation of permanent erosion control.
  - c. Planting for permanent erosion control shall be established by October 1, or mitigation for water related erosion implemented as specified below.
2. Water Related Erosion.
  - a. Period when erosion control measure is in effect is October 15 to April 15;
  - b. Erosion control design shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer and shall meet the approval of the City Engineer;
  - c. Erosion control standard plans and design criteria on file with the City Engineer are to be used as guidelines by the Engineer;
  - d. Two sets of erosion control plans shall be submitted by September 1 for review by the City Engineer.

### G. Violation.

It shall be a violation of this ordinance for any person to:

1. Perform work without a permit;
2. Perform work without an approved plan;
3. Continue to work in violation of a stop work order.

### H. Enforcement.

Any violation of this ordinance shall be a public nuisance and a misdemeanor which may be punishable by imposing a maximum fine of \$500.00 and/or ~~a jail term of imprisonment in the County Jail for thirty (30) days~~ up to six (6) months for each such violation.

### I. Permit—Inspection.

City Engineer is authorized to inspect and initiate enforcement procedures as necessary.

## Exhibit A

### **15.04.170 - Minimum Building Permit Valuation Basis.**

The following shall apply to any work that is subject to the provisions of this Chapter:

- A. The minimum valuation basis to be used in computing permit fees shall be such as are fixed from time to time by resolution of City Council.
- B. Building permit fees shall be based on the above-mentioned minimum valuation schedule or the actual value, whichever is greater.

### **15.04.180 - Moved Buildings.**

The following shall apply to any work that is subject to the provisions of this Chapter:

Buildings or structures proposed to be moved within the City limits shall be inspected by the Building Department prior to moving and issuance of permits. Fees for such inspections shall be such as fixed by resolution of the City Council.

### **15.04.190 – Section 101.2 Amendment.**

Section 101.2 (Scope) is hereby amended to remove the paragraph entitled “Exception” in its entirety.

### **15.04.200 - Penalty for Violation.**

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter ~~and or~~ Chapter 15.44 or any order made hereunder, or the provisions of any permit issued hereunder, is guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of not more than 6 months or by both such fine and imprisonment. A continuing violation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a separate and distinct offense for each day or portion thereof that such violation continues. Nothing in this section is intended to be the exclusive remedy for any violation of this Chapter, Chapter 15.05, or Chapter 15.44, or any order or permit issued thereunder.

### **15.04.210 – Appeals Board.**

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated by any of the provisions of the California Building Code, the Appeals Board for any appeal that may be made under this Chapter is hereby designated to be the City Council.

## Exhibit A

### **15.04.220 – Conflict or Inconsistency.**

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Building Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

### **15.04.230 – No Mandatory Duty.**

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this chapter.

### **15.04.240 – Unsafe and Substandard Buildings.**

A. No person may occupy, inhabit, reside or remain within, any building or structure that has been determined by the Building Official to be unsafe pursuant to Section 116 of the California Building Code and posted in compliance with that section.

B. No person may occupy, inhabit, reside or remain within, any building or structure that constitutes a substandard building as defined by Health and Safety Code Section 17920.3, as it may be amended from time to time, after such building or structure has been designated a substandard building and a notice to vacate has been issued in accordance with the provisions of the State Housing Law (Part 1.5 of Division 13, commencing with Section 17910, of the Health and Safety Code).

C. Nothing in this section shall prevent the Building Official from authorizing any repairs, alterations, or corrections necessary to remove or abate the conditions that have been determined to be unsafe or that constitute a substandard building under this section. Any person acting in accordance with such authority shall not be deemed to be in violation of this section.

## Exhibit B

### **CHAPTER 15.05 – RESIDENTIAL CODE**

#### **15.05.010 - Adoption of the California Residential Code**

There is adopted by reference, ~~Part 2.5 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, also referred to as~~ the 2016 Edition of the California Residential Code, ~~which incorporates a California version of the 2013 Edition of the International Residential Code as published by the International Code Council, also known as Part 2.5 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, with amendments set forth in this Chapter.~~

#### **15.05.020 – Applicability**

Division 1, Chapter II of the California Residential Code shall be excluded from this Chapter. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of the California Residential Code, the provisions of Chapter 15.04 shall be applied to any work subject to this Chapter.

#### **15.05.030 – Conflict or Inconsistency.**

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Residential Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

#### **15.05.040 – No Mandatory Duty.**

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this chapter.

## Exhibit C

### CHAPTER 15.07

#### **15.07.010 - Adoption of the California Green Building Standards Code**

There is hereby adopted by reference the 2016 Edition of the California Green Building Standards Code as published by the International Code Council, also known as Part 11 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, excluding all appendices and with the amendments stated by this Chapter, also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Green Building Standards Code as published by the International Code Council for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing the planning, design, operation, construction, use and occupancy of every newly constructed building or structure unless otherwise indicated in the California Green Building Standards Code.

#### **15.05.020 – Conflict or Inconsistency.**

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Green Building Standards Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

#### **15.05.030 – No Mandatory Duty.**

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this chapter.

#### **15.04.040 – Appeals Board.**

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated by any of the provisions of the California Green Building Standards Code, the Appeals Board for any appeal that may be made under this Chapter is hereby designated to be the City Council

#### **15.04.050 – Penalties.**

Any person violating any of the provisions of this Chapter, or any order made hereunder, is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of \$500 and/or imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of not more than six (6) months. A continuing violation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a separate and distinct offense for each day or portion thereof that such violation continues. Nothing in this section is intended to be the exclusive remedy for any violation of this Chapter, or any order or permit issued hereunder.

## Exhibit D

### CHAPTER 15.16 - MECHANICAL CODE

#### 15.16.010 - Adoption of the Mechanical Code.

The City hereby adopts by reference, with the amendments ~~as~~ set forth in this Chapter ~~and excluding all of the appendices, the 2016 Edition of the California Mechanical Code which incorporates a California version of the 2015 edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code as published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, also known as~~ Part 4 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, ~~also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Mechanical Code which incorporates a California version of the 2015 edition of the Uniform Mechanical Code as published by the International association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials.~~

#### 15.16.020 - Permit Fees.

Permit fees for work regulated by this Chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by Resolution of the City Council of the City of Martinez.

#### 15.16.030 - Penalty for Violations.

Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter, or any order made hereunder, or the provisions of any permit issued hereunder is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of no more than 6 months or by both such fine and imprisonment. A continuing violation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a separate and distinct offense for each day or portion thereof that such violation continues. Nothing in this section is intended to be the exclusive remedy for any violation of this Chapter, or any order or permit issued hereunder.

#### 15.05.040 – Conflict or Inconsistency.

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Mechanical Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

#### 15.05.050 – No Mandatory Duty.

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this chapter.

#### 15.05.060 – Appeals Board.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated by any of the provisions of the California Mechanical Code, the Appeals Board for any appeal that may be made under this Chapter is hereby designated to be the City Council.

## Exhibit E

### CHAPTER 15.20 - PLUMBING CODE

#### 15.20.010 - Adoption of the ~~Uniform California~~ Plumbing Code.

The City hereby adopts by reference, with the amendments as set forth in this Chapter ~~and excluding all appendices, the 2016 Edition of the California Plumbing Code which incorporates a California version of the 2015 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code as published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, also known as Part 5 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, for the purpose of prescribing minimum regulations for the installation, alteration, repair and inspection of plumbing and drainage systems, Part 5 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Mechanical Code which incorporates a California version of the 2015 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code as published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials.~~

#### 15.20.020 - ~~Amendments and Exceptions to Uniform Plumbing Code. Amendment - Section 108.4.2 Fees.~~

~~Section 108.4.2 shall be removed and replaced to read as follows:~~

~~Permit fees for work regulated by this Chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by resolution of the City Council.~~

~~Amendments to the Uniform Plumbing Code are hereby adopted as set forth in Section 15.20.040.~~

#### 15.20.040 - ~~Section 108.4.2 Fees.~~

~~Permit fees for work regulated by this Chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by resolution of the City Council.~~

#### 15.20.030 - Appeals Board.

~~Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated by any of the provisions of the California Plumbing Code, the Appeals Board for any appeal that may be made under this Chapter is hereby designated to be the City Council.~~

#### 15.20.040 - Penalty for Violations.

~~Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter, or any order made hereunder, or the provisions of any permit issued hereunder is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of not more than 6 months or by both such fine and imprisonment. Nothing in this section is intended to be the exclusive remedy for any violation of this Chapter, or any order or permit issued hereunder. A continuing violation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a separate and distinct offense for each day or portion thereof that such violation continues.~~

## Exhibit E

### **15.20.050 – Conflict or Inconsistency.**

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Plumbing Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

### **15.20.060 – No Mandatory Duty.**

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this Chapter.

## Exhibit F

### **CHAPTER 15.24 - ELECTRICAL CODE**

#### **15.24.010 - Adoption of ~~National~~ California Electrical Code.**

The City hereby adopts by reference, with the amendments as set forth in this Chapter ~~and excluding all appendices, the 2016 Edition of the California Electrical Code which incorporates the 2014 National Electrical Code as published by the National Fire Protection Agency, also known as~~ Part 3 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, ~~also referred to as the 2016 Edition of the California Electrical Code which incorporates the 2014 National Electrical Code as published by the National Fire Protection Agency.~~

#### **15.24.0320 – Amended Section 89.108.4.2 Fees.**

Section 89.108.4.2 is hereby ~~amended~~ removed and replaced to read as follows:

"Permit fees for work regulated by this Chapter shall be as adopted from time to time by resolution of the City Council.

#### **15.24.0430 - Administrative Authority and Assistants Defined.**

Whenever the term "Administrative Authority" is used in the Code adopted by this Chapter and in the following Sections it shall be construed to mean the building official; and whenever the term "assistants" is used, it shall be construed to mean the ~~B~~building ~~i~~nspectors.

#### **15.24.050 – Departments having Jurisdiction.**

~~Unless otherwise provided for by law, the office of the Administrative Authority shall be a part of the Public Works Department.~~

#### **15.24.040 – Appeals Board.**

~~Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated by any of the provisions of the California Energy Code, the Appeals Board for any appeal that may be made under this Chapter is hereby designated to be the City Council.~~

#### **15.24.050 - Penalty for Violations.**

~~Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Chapter, or any order made hereunder, or the provisions of any permit issued hereunder is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than \$500.00 or by imprisonment in the County Jail for a period of not more than 6 months or by both such fine and imprisonment. Nothing in this section is intended to be the exclusive remedy for any violation of this Chapter, or any order or permit issued hereunder. A continuing violation shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a separate and distinct offense for each day or portion thereof that such violation continues.~~

## Exhibit F

### **15.24.060 – Conflict or Inconsistency.**

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the provisions of the California Electrical Code and any of the provisions stated expressly by this Chapter, the provisions of this Chapter shall be controlling.

### **15.24.070 – No Mandatory Duty.**

By adoption of this chapter the City Council does not intend to create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall”, “will”, “must”, or similar terms stated expressly or incorporated into this Chapter.

Exhibit-G

**CHAPTER 15.28 - FIRE PREVENTION CODE**

**15.28.010 - Adopted.**

~~The Contra Costa County Consolidated Fire District~~In accordance with Health & Safety Code Section 13869.7, the City hereby ratifies the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Fire Code, adopting by reference the 2016 California Fire Code (California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 9 [based on the 2015 International Fire Code published by the International Code Council) as amended by the changes, additions, and deletions set forth in District Ordinance No. 2016-23. ~~Fire Prevention Code is hereby adopted by reference, including those changes, additions and deletions to the 2016 Edition of the California Fire Code (which incorporates by reference and adopts a California version of the 2015 International Fire Code published by the International Code Council) as adopted by the Contra Costa County Consolidated Fire District. The chief, or the chief's authorized representative, of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District is hereby delegated the enforcement of the Fire Prevention Code within the City of Martinez, pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 13869.7.~~